
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session. 

Please ask for: 
Marie Lowe 

 
* Reporting to Cabinet 

8 September 2017 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING PANEL to be held on Monday 18 September 2017 at 7.30pm in the 
Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE. 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Executive Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTIONS  
 

 To note any substitution of Committee Members in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules 19 – 22. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 August 2017 
(previously circulated).  
 

4.   ACTIONS UPDATE (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
which lists the actions from previous meetings and their current status.   
 

5.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 12  
 

Public Document Pack



6.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda.  
 

7.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS  
 

 Up to fifteen minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions. 
 

8.   REPAIRS PRESENTATION  
 

 Short presentation by Mears and TSG to brief members on their work with the 
council and measures in place to ensure service delivery. 
 

9.   FIRE SAFETY UPDATE  
 

 A verbal update by the Head of Property Services on works being undertaken at 
Queensway House. 
 

10.   REVIEW OF THE HOUSING ALLOCATIONS POLICY (HAP) (Pages 7 - 20) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Housing and Communities) setting out the 
proposed changes to the Council’s Housing Allocations Policy (HAP) following 
consultation. 
 

11.   WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18 (Pages 21 - 24) 
 

 The pro-forma which sets out the Panel’s work programme has been updated 
since the last meeting to enable forward planning of items to be considered to take 
place. 
 

12.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

13.   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Panel is asked to resolve: 
 
That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for items 14 and 15 (if any) on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information 
as defined in Section 100A(3) and Paragraph 4 (consultations or negotiations 
relating to labour relations) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as 
amended).  
 
In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.  
 
 
 



 
PART II 

 

14.   HOUSING OPERATIONS CUSTOMER FIRST TRANSFORMATION 
PROGRAMME - UPDATE  
 

 A verbal update from the Head of Housing Operations on the Customer First 
Transformation Programme. 
 

15.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF AN EXEMPT NATURE AT THE DISCRETION OF 
THE CHAIRMAN  

 
Circulation: Councillors J.Boulton (Chairman) 

M.Perkins (Vice-Chairman) 
M.Birleson 
M.Cook 
J.Cragg 
 

M.Holloway 
K.Holman 
S.Glick 
H.Quenet 
F.Thomson 
 

 Co-opted Members:- 
Tenants’ Panel Representatives 
 
R.Read and B.Robbins 
 
Independent Representatives 
 
R.Paris and S.Smith 

 
 Executive Board 

Press and Public (except Part II Items) 
 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact M Lowe  
Governance Services Unit on 01707 357443 or email – m.lowe@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:m.lowe@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Item No: 4 

Main author: Marie Lowe 
Executive Member: Cllr Roger Trigg 

Not Ward Specific 
 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET HOUSING PANEL – 18 SEPTEMER 2017 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND 

GOVERNANCE) 

 

ACTIONS STATUS REPORT 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 In order to ensure that actions identified at meetings are completed, this report lists the 
actions from the meeting of the Cabinet Housing on 7 August 2017, those responsible 
for completing each action and their current status. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That Members note the status of actions which were identified at the 7 August 2017 
meeting of the Committee. 

 

Minute 

 

Action 

 

Responsible 
Status/ 
Date Completed 

19. Cabinet Housing Panel Work 
Programme 2017/18 
 

Marie Lowe Completed 
17 August 2017 

21. Housing Operations Customer 
First Transformation Programme 
 

Stuart Pearson Deferred by Cabinet 
on 8 August 2017 

 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Part I  
Item No: 10 
Main author: Dawn Murphy  
Executive Member: Mandy Perkins  
All Wards  

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL  
CABINET HOUSING PANEL 
REPORT OF DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITY) 
18 SEPTEMBER 2017 
 
HOUSING ALLOCATION POLICY REVIEW 
 
1 Executive Summary  

1.1  The Council’s Housing Allocation Policy sets out the rules for the Council’s 
Housing Needs Register (HNR) and how priority is awarded to households, based 
on their housing need.  The HNR is a list of all applicants looking for affordable, 
rented and low cost home ownership accommodation in the Welwyn Hatfield 
Borough.  This reflects issues such as overcrowding, health problems and 
homelessness.  

1.2 The Council works in partnership with four other Hertfordshire councils (St Albans, 
Hertsmere, Watford and Three Rivers) to provide a Choice Based Letting (CBL) 
system, whereby applicants registered on this Council’s Housing Needs Register 
place ‘bids’ for vacant properties that meet their needs. 

1.3  The Housing Allocation Policy was reviewed in 2012 in response to changes 
brought about by the Localism Act 2011, which gave councils greater freedom in 
the way in which they operate their HNR. After broad consultation, the revised 
policy was approved by full Council in January 2013. 

1.4  After a period of review, a report was brought to members in January 2015, setting 
out proposals for further minor changes to the current Housing Allocations Policy; 
these were approved for wider public consultation and adopted in October 2015.  

1.5 The Housing and Planning Act 2016 came into force on 12 May 2016 and 
introduced numerous changes to housing law and planning law, mainly intended 
to promote homeownership and boost levels of housebuilding in England.  A key 
element of this was the introduction of a Pay to Stay policy for council tenants.   

1.6 As a result of this policy, a review of the Council’s Housing Allocation Scheme 
commenced.  Whilst the government later amended the Pay to Stay policy, the 
review was already underway and it was agreed to continue with this as other 
proposed changes were put forward for consideration. 

1.7 A report was brought to this panel on 19 April 2017 setting out the proposals for 
further changes to the current Housing Allocations Policy; they were approved for 
wider consultation. 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 10



 
 

1.8 The consultation began on 8th May and closed 12 weeks later on 31st July.  An 
email survey was sent to all applicants who we hold email addresses for, all of 
whom are currently registered on the Housing Needs Register.  For those 
applicants without an email address, a paper copy of the survey was sent by post.  
We emailed the survey to partner agencies for their comments as well as a link to 
the survey being added onto the Herts Choice Homes website and finally a ‘pop 
up’ was included on the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council website.   

2  Recommendation(s)  

2.1 Members recommend the proposed changes, as set out in Paragraph 8.5 of this 
 report. 

Implications  

3  Financial Implication(s)  

3.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. 

4  Link to Corporate Priorities  

4.1  I confirm that the subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority, 
Meet the Borough’s housing needs, and specifically to the achievement of the 
priority - Making Best Use of our Housing Stock – set out in the council’s Housing 
and Homelessness Strategy 2013 – 2018. 

4.2 The Under Occupation and Overcrowding Strategy 2015-2018 and the Tenancy 
Strategy 2013, which both aim to ensure the most effective use of the borough’s 
housing stock, are linked to the Housing Allocation Policy.  

 
5  Legal Implication(s)  

5.1  Under s.169 of the Housing Act 1996 (‘the 1996 Act’) Housing Authorities are 
required to have regard to this section in exercising their functions under Part 6 of 
the 1996 Act (‘Part 6’). Local Authorities are required to devise housing allocations 
schemes which give “reasonable preference” to certain categories of applicants.  

5.2 The Localism Act 2011 introduced significant amendments to Part 6, the main 
 objectives being to enable housing authorities to better manage their housing
 waiting list by giving them the power to determine which applicants do or do not 
 qualify for an allocation of social housing.   
 
5.3 Housing Authorities must publish a summary of their allocation scheme and when 

an alteration is made reflecting a major change of policy, an authority must ensure 
within a reasonable time that those likely to be affected by the change have the 
effect brought to their attention. 

 
6  Climate Change Implication(s)  

6.1  There are no Climate Change implications arising directly from this report.  

 

Page 8



 
 

7  Risk Management Implications  

7.1  The risks related to this proposal are:  

7.2  Legal and Reputational – It is important to review key policies on a regular basis to 
ensure that they remain legally compliant and that the impact of policies is 
consistent with the aims and objectives. The recommendations in this report do 
not include change required by government regulation. 

8 Explanation  

8.1   The Council’s Housing Allocation Policy sets out the rules relating to who can 
 apply to join the Council’s HNR and how housing register applications will be 
 managed and prioritised. The HNR includes both existing tenants (transfer 
 applicants) and people who don’t currently live in social housing (home seekers). 
 The current scheme has been in place since January 2015 after revisions made to 
 the previous policy which dated back to May 2013.  

8.2  Housing applicants are placed into bands, depending on their level of priority,  
 resulting from an assessment of their individual circumstances. There are five  
 bands (A to E) with ‘A’ being for applicants who have the greatest priority and ‘D’  
 being for those applicants who have the lowest. Band E is reserved for those with 

no local connection and/or recognised housing need who are over the age of 60 
and are applying for sheltered accommodation. 

8.3 All the proposed changes aim to ensure that there is greater fairness and 
transparency in the way in which priority is awarded.  In some areas, the 
proposals seek to better manage expectations of applicants, where the current 
policy may be raising expectations that cannot be met.   

 
8.4 Even though the introduction of Pay to Stay is no longer compulsory, the review 

gave us the opportunity to consider the way in which we assess applicants’ (both 
new and transferring tenants) financial circumstances.  We want to ensure that 
social housing is allocated to those in the greatest need.  If an applicant or tenant 
has sufficient resources to find alternative housing options, they will not be given 
priority for allocation of social housing. Whilst there was a procedure in place for 
assessing this, the teams have reviewed this to ensure that it is sufficiently robust. 

 
8.5 A report was brought to Cabinet Housing and Planning Panel on 19 April 2017 

which set out the proposed changes and the reasons for these.  For ease of 
reference these are summarised in the Paragraph below and the full proposal in 
Appendix A. 

a) To no longer allow older home owners on the HNR unless in financial 
hardship or other exceptional circumstances would warrant this 

b) To amend the local connection criteria, so that a person establishes a local 
connection via employment in the district if they have had that employment 
for up to a minimum of five years 

c) To not award any priority or bedroom eligibility as a result of a pregnancy, 
but defer awarding additional priority until the baby is born and birth 
certificate received 

Page 9



 
 

d) Applicants who have access to children are currently able to bid for 2 bed 
properties above the 3rd floor, remove this option as it does not result in an 
allocation  

e) To remove the current priority awarded where someone is living in 
unsanitary conditions, however to commit to an assessment of 
homelessness if someone is living in very poor circumstances or their home 
is potentially insanitary and award any associated priority based on this 
assessment 

f) To not allow those with current or former tenant arrears on the HNR unless 
exceptional circumstances exist.  If there is a tenancy breach for a current 

tenant, they should not be allowed to join the HNR (we do have a policy 
whereby people who are in arrears solely due to the spare room 
subsidy may be able to move, where they agree to repay that debt as 
a condition of their new tenancy) 

g) To give tenants living in properties that are to be decommissioned (that is 
changed from sheltered to general needs usage) the same priority as those 
moving from general needs housing to sheltered accommodation 
 

8.6 Members approved the recommendation in that report to consult on these 
changes and the consultation questions, results of the consultation and our 
response to queries raised are set out in detail at Appendix B.  

 
8.7 The common themes emerging from the consultation were around people’s 

concerns about affordability, appropriately recognising medical needs, ensuring 

priority is given to women who have twins and/or babies with identified medical 

needs, help for people experiencing relationship breakdown and concern around 

the ageing population and there not being enough sheltered accommodation.   

8.7 The majority of respondents were in favour of the proposed changes and on that 
basis we are recommending that the Housing Allocation Policy is revised in line 
with this. 

 
8.8 In terms of the proposal to extend the length of time applicants have to work in the 

borough before they can acquire a local connection, the preferred option (48% 
respondents) was extending this to five years.  We recommend the Housing 
Allocation Policy is amended in line with this.  

 
9 Equality and Diversity  

9.1  An Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out.  There is a negative impact 
on age, due to the change proposed to remove older owner occupiers from the 
HNR. However this will be mitigated by advice about other available housing 
options and where there is financial hardship and/or exceptional circumstances, 
applicants will still be able to apply to join the HNR.  On this basis it is considered 
reasonable to make the changes proposed. 

9.2 There will be a positive impact on people who are older as a result of the proposal 
to provide additional priority to tenants who occupy decommissioned properties. 

 

Page 10



 
 

 

9.3 There is a negative impact on people who are pregnant, as it is proposed that the 
additional priority awarded at the point at which they are six (6) month’s pregnant 
will be removed.  However overall it is considered reasonable to prioritise those 
who have children already, above those who are pregnant and therefore it is 
considered that this is a justifiable change.   

9.4 The proposal to prevent applicants who are in breach of their tenancy to join the 
HNR could have a negative impact on people with a disability, as they may be 
more likely to have issues in managing their tenancy.  However this is mitigated by 

the pro-active approach to supporting people who are finding it hard to 
sustain their tenancy due to a disability, including tenancy support and 
signposting to other support services. 

 

Name of author:  Dawn Murphy  
   Head of Housing Needs 
Date:    1 September 2017 
 
 
Appendix A - Proposed Amendments to the Housing Allocation Policy 
 
Appendix B – Method and results of the consultation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



 
 

Appendix A 
 
Proposed Amendments to the Housing Allocation Policy 
 

Aspect of Policy  Current  Proposal  Reasoning Comments Stats 
Available 

a)  
 
Home Owners 
accepted onto 
the HNR 

Home 
Owners 
over 60 + 
are 
accepted 
onto the 
HNR in 
Band E and 
can bid 

No longer 
allow home 
owners on 
the HNR 
unless in 
financial 
hardship  

Property prices in this 
area are high and most 
will have the financial 
resource to source 
other accommodation 

12 current 
or former 
home 
owners 
housed into 
sheltered 
accommoda
tion in 2016  

Band E Lets 
Jan-Dec 16  

b) 
 
Local connection  

Employed 
in the 
Borough for 
12 months 
(16 hrs. pw 
on 
permanent  
contract)  

Extend 
period of 
employment 
up to a 
minimum of 
five years 

Applicants quite often 
have no other 
connection to this area 
and due to their 
circumstances, may be 
highly placed on the 
HNR 

Include as 
part of 
consultation 
whether the 
period of 
employment 
should be 
for 3, 5 or 7 
years 

Local 
connection 
through work 
only 

c)  
 
Consideration of 
Maternity 
Certificate 
(MATB1)  

Priority 
given once 
MATB1 
received for 
both priority 
(for 
example 
overcrowdin
g) and 
eligibility for 
size of 
property – 
for example 
eligibility for 
a two 
bedroom, 
rather than 
one.  

Do not 
award any 
priority or 
bedroom 
eligibility 
until baby is 
born and 
birth 
certificate is 
received 

Currently this means 
priority is given before 
the baby is born and 
can mean pregnant 
women are housed 
before those with 
children already born. 

 This priority 
currently 
comes into 
place once the 
woman is 
more than six 
month’s 
pregnant.  If 
the proposed 
change is 
made, it is not 
be applied in 
retrospect to 
anyone who 
has already 
been awarded 
additional 
priority. 

d) 
 
Contact with 
children  

Those with 
contact with 
children are 
able to 
queue for 2 
beds above 
the 3rd floor 

Remove This policy was put in 
place when the levels 
of housing need were 
less pressing than 
currently.  Therefore, 
on occasions, higher 
level flats were less in 
demand.  This is never 
the case now and the 
policy raises 
expectations and never 
results in an allocation 

Off those 
let, none 
went to 
applicants 
without 
children 

2 beds 3rd floor  

Page 12



 
 

Aspect of Policy  Current  Proposal  Reasoning Comments Stats 
Available 

e) 
 
Living in 
unsanitary 
conditions  

If awarded  
applicants 
are placed 
in Band A 

Remove as 
this is 
ambiguous.  
Cases like this 
are so rare 
and we would 
refer them to 
the Private 
Sector Team 
for a full 
assessment of 
the property.  If 
property 
uninhabitable, 
they would be 
homeless and 
would be 
referred to the 
Housing 
Advice Team 

If condition of 
property is that 
bad, can be dealt 
with through 
homeless 
legislation if 
Temporary 
Accommodation is 
needed.  If 
improvements 
needed, this can 
be done working 
with the Private 
Sector Team.  

Only 3 
applicants 
have been 
placed in this 
category in 
2016  

Band A Lets  

f) 
 
Tenants in breach 
of their tenancy 
conditions 

Are able 
to register 
on HNR 
and bid.  
Those 
with rent 
arrears 
are placed 
in Pending 
but once 
arrears 
are 
cleared 
they have 
an early 
date in 
band 

Do not allow 
those with 
current or 
former arrears 
on HNR.  If 
tenancy 
breach for a 
current tenant, 
they should 
not be allowed 
to join HNR 
rather than be 
in Pending 

Once arrears are 
cleared, the 
applicant has a 
significant 
advantage, based 
on the length of 
time they have 
been on the list, we 
want to establish a 
fairer system which 
better rewards 
tenants who are 
maintaining their 
rent payments 
 

Agreement 
from Housing 
Management 
and Housing 
Needs  

None  

g) 
 
Decommissioning 
of Sheltered 
Housing 
accommodation 
where demand is 
low for this type of 
accommodation 

Not done  Give tenants 
living in 
properties that 
will be 
decommission
ed the same 
priority as 
those moving 
from General 
Needs to 
sheltered  

To assist in making 
the rehousing 
process quicker 

  

 
 
 
 

Page 13



 
 

Appendix B  
 

Method Numbers 
Consulted 

Number of 
Responses 

Percentage 

Email to applicants  1932 418 22% 

Postal Survey 196 49 25% 

Email to partner agencies  31 7 23% 

Web link on HCH website  Unknown  65  

Website pop up on Welhat website  Unknown  28  

 
The results of the consultation are as follows: 
 
Proposal 1: 
To no longer accept home owners onto the Housing Needs Register unless they are in 
financial hardship. 
 
Do you agree with this proposal? 

Yes 72.84% 

No 17.99% 

No opinion  9.17% 

Total number of respondents  567 

 
Proposal 2: 
Increase the length of time someone needs to be employed in the Borough to gain a local 
connection and qualify to join the Housing Needs Register 
 
Do you agree with this proposal? 

Yes  70.83% 

No 19.75% 

No opinion  9.42% 

Total number of respondents  552 

 
Proposal 2A: 
Do you think the limit should be set at three, five or seven years? 
 

Three years 28.23% 

Five years 48.02% 

Seven years  23.75% 

Total number of respondents  379 

 
Proposal 3: 
Do not award bedroom eligibility or priority until a child’s birth certificate is received  
 
Do you agree with this proposal? 

Yes  62.87% 

No 23.35% 

No opinion  13.79% 

Total number of respondents  544 

 

Page 14



 
 

Proposal 4: 
No longer allow applicants with access to children to queue for two bedroom family 
accommodation above the 3rd floor 
 
Do you agree with this proposal? 

Yes  62.62% 

No 13.64% 

No opinion  23.74% 

Total number of respondents  535 

 
Proposal 5: 
To remove the priority given to applicants who are living in unsanitary conditions 
 
Do you agree with this proposal? 

Yes  65.60% 

No 19.09% 

No opinion  15.31% 

Total number of respondents  529 

 
Proposal 6: 
Do not allow current tenants who owe us rent or other charges or have breached their 
tenancy to register on the Housing Needs Register and bid for alternative 
accommodation 
 
Do you agree with this proposal? 

Yes  80.27% 

No 12.52% 

No opinion  7.21% 

Total number of respondents  527 

 
Proposal 7: 
Do not allow former tenants who owe us rent or other charges to register on the Housing 
Needs Register and bid for alternative accommodation 
 
Do you agree with this proposal? 

Yes  80.08% 

No 11.88% 

No opinion  8.05% 

Total number of respondents  522 

 
Proposal 8: 
We will give high priority (Band B) to council and housing association tenants who live in 
a sheltered property which is being decommissioned and who express a wish to move. 
 

Yes  73.99% 

No 10.79% 

No opinion  15.22% 

Total number of respondents  519 

 

Page 15



 
 

Summary of Comments Received 
 
 
Q1. Do you agree that we should not accept home owners onto the Housing Needs 
Register (HNR)? 
 
Over 100 comments were received from applicants on this question.  The main themes 
were around: 

 Affordability and who will assess if someone is in financial hardship. 

 A lot of respondents were surprised to hear that this is the current policy. 

 Change of circumstances such as relationship breakdown should be considered 

 Those with specific medical needs who need a particular type of property should 

be looked at individually 

How we can address these concerns: 
We have Senior Officer Panel (SOP) which meets on a fortnightly basis.  Part of the remit 
of SOP is to consider cases which are considered to have exceptional circumstances to 
see if they can be accepted onto the HNR.  The type of cases highlighted above could be 
considered in this way following an assessment by the Housing Needs Team around the 
affordability of their property.  
 
 
Q2A. Do you agree that we should extend the length of time someone has to work 
in the Borough in order for them to be considered to have a local connection? 
 
Just over 80 comments were received on this question with the main concerns being: 

 How can those unable to work due to disability/ill health gain a local connection in 

the Borough? 

 Concerns for applicants who need to move due to fear of violence  

 Difficulty for those seeking employment due to lack of jobs available 

 Misunderstanding around the other local connection rules such as residency and 

family connection 

How we can address these concerns: 
There was a recent case in St Albans where the applicant appealed the decision to not 
allow them to join the waiting list due to no local connection.  The applicant was disabled 
and unable to work.  At the time, we considered if we could be challenged in a similar 
case.  However, as SOP consider exceptional circumstances, it was felt we had provision 
for this type of case. 
 
If applicants need to move due to fear of violence, they are likely to be dealt with under 
the homeless legislation which has different local connection rules and in fact, those 
fleeing violence, can approach any area. 
 
We run one Job Fair a year in July in partnership with Hatfield Job Centre and Youth 
Connexions. We also run weekly Digital Drop in’s in both WGC and Hatfield where 
people can come and job search. We also offer training courses to help people get jobs.  
We will provide more detailed information to applicants about local connection rules. 
 
 

Page 16



 
 

Q2B. Do you think the limit should be set at three, five or seven years or should the 
current policy should be maintained (12 months)? 
 
Over 40 comments were received for this question with the main concerns being: 

 Should there be different rules for those in professions such as nursing? 

 Length of time it can take for a person to be able to claim citizenship and should 

we bring the rules in line with this? 

 
How we can address these concerns: 
Other organisations that operate locally (Affinity Sutton, Origin Housing) operate Key 
worker schemes in this area that applicants can be referred into. 

 
Q3. Do you agree that additional bedroom priority should not be awarded until we 
receive a copy of the child’s birth certificate? 
 
Almost 80 comments were made regarding this proposal.  Common themes were: 

 Those having multiple births 

 Those pregnant with babies with identified medical needs 

 Could the priority be backdated to the date of the child’s birth rather than the date 

we receive the birth certificate 

 The impact on a new family (mother in particular) of moving with a young baby 

 Could this increase the length of time people have to live in temporary 

accommodation? 

 
How we can address these concerns: 
As with all applications we deal with, cases of multiple births or those with identified 
medical needs can be considered on a case by case basis through Senior Officer Panel. 
The possible impact on those in temporary accommodation will need to be considered. 
 
However, through the homeless legislation, someone is considered in priority need 
before the MATB1 is received. 
 
Q4. Do you agree with the proposal to no longer applicants with access to children 
to queue for two bed accommodation above the third floor? 
 
Over 70 comments were received from respondents with the main themes being: 

 There should be a time limit on single people waiting 

 The ideal of children having access to a garden 

 The difficulty of young children climbing stairs 

 
How we can address these concerns: 
With the introduction on the Homeless Reduction Act, the work we do with applicants to 
prevent their homelessness will become more pro-active.  We constantly need to 
consider and educate applicants on all options available to them such as private rented 
accommodation as unfortunately the numbers waiting for social housing in Welwyn 
Hatfield, outweighs the accommodation available. 
 
 

Page 17



 
 

Q5. Priority Band awarded for applicants living in Unsanitary Conditions  
 
Just over 50 comments were made concerning this proposal with the main concerns 
being around: 

 Landlords having the responsibility to ensure a property is of good standard 

 What would happen if the ‘unsanitary conditions’ were caused by the 

lifestyle/behaviour of the applicant 

 The risk of retaliatory evictions if a tenant complains about the condition of their 

property 

 
How we can address these concerns: 
Try to increase the number of landlords signed up to PAL (Welwyn Hatfield and 
University of Hertfordshire landlord and property accreditation scheme. 
 
If a tenant has caused the poor conditions, it is likely they would be in breach of their 
tenancy and be served with a notice to leave the property by their landlord. 
 
The Housing Needs Team work with tenants who are being harassed by their landlord or 
threatened with illegal or retaliatory eviction. 
 
Q6. Should Current tenants in breach of their tenancy, be allowed to join the 
Housing Needs Register (HNR)? 
 
70 respondents commented on this proposal.  Areas of concern were: 

 Those who are in arrears as their current property is unaffordable 

 Look at tenants situation individually 

 Those in debt due to illness and the need they may have to move to more suitable 

accommodation 

How we can address these concerns: 
We are able to refer both tenants and applicants to Citizens Advice for assistance with 
debts. 
 
Our Specialist Housing Management Team and Home Mover Officer work with tenants 
looking to move to smaller more affordable accommodation. 
 
As with all cases, any exceptional circumstances can be considered by Senior Officer 
Panel. 
 
Q7. Should former tenants who owe us rent or other charges, be able to join the 
Housing Needs Register (HNR)? 
 

 Those in debt due to illness and the need they may have to move to more suitable 

accommodation 

 Fully consider the reasons for the debt and the efforts made by the tenant to repay 

them 

 
 
 

Page 18



 
 

How we can address these concerns: 
We are able to refer both tenants and applicants to Citizens Advice for assistance with 
debts. 
 
As with all cases, any exceptional circumstances can be considered by Senior Officer 
Panel. 

 
Q8. Should tenants living in properties that are due to be decommissioned, be 
given Band B priority? 

 
Just over 30 comments were received on this proposal with the main points being: 

 Concern around the ageing population and there being enough sheltered 

accommodation for them in the future 

 The impact on residents living in blocks due to be decommissioned 

How we can address these concerns: 
We recognise we have an ageing population and need to meet the differing needs by 
offering a range of housing options and support service.  We have high number of 
sheltered housing units with the stock, we are the biggest provider within the county and 
we are seeking to ensure we have a balance of stock available to our customer, to meet 
our customers need both for general and sheltered housing  
 
Tenants living in blocks affected by decommissioning would have close contact with their 
Neighbourhood Housing Officer (NHO).  The NHO would assist them in applying to move 
and bidding on suitable properties should they need it and if they want to move as this 
will be their choice. 
 
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET HOUSING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18 

MEETING DATES REPORTS FROM OFFICERS REPORT 
AUTHORS 

SERVICE AREAS 
 

TO CABINET/ 
COUNCIL IF 
APPLICABLE 

18 September 
2017 
 

 Presentation on Repair Services 
(Mears and TSG) 

 

 Fire Safety Update 
 

 Review of the Housing Allocation 

Policy (HAP) 

 

 Action Update Report 

 

 Work Programme 

 Housing Operations Customer 

First Transformation Programme 

(Part II item)  

Peter Gray 

 

Peter Gray 

 

Sian Chambers/ 

Dawn Murphy 

Marie Lowe 

Marie Lowe 

Stuart Pearson 

Property Services (Housing) 

 

Property Services (Housing) 

 

Community and Housing 

Strategy 

 

Governance Services 

Governance Services 

Housing Operations 

3 October 2017 

30 October 2017 
 

 Presentation by the development 

architect  (Pellings) on the 

different types of affordable 

housing 

 Affordable Housing Programme - 

an overview (AHP) 

 

 New statutory enforcement 
powers for private sector housing 
- Policy paper 

 

Sian Chambers/ 

Jeremy Morton 

 

Sian Chambers 

Andy Luck 

 

 

Community and Housing 

Strategy 

 

Community and Housing 

Strategy 

Community and Housing 

Strategy 

 

Community and Housing 

7 November 
2017 

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 11



CABINET HOUSING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18 

MEETING DATES REPORTS FROM OFFICERS REPORT 
AUTHORS 

SERVICE AREAS 
 

TO CABINET/ 
COUNCIL IF 
APPLICABLE 

 Review of Rough Sleeper 
Protocol 
 

 HRA Business Plan 
 

 Tenant’s Panel Scrutiny – Repair 

Services 

 

 Action Update Report 

 Work Programme 

Dawn Murphy 

 

Sian Chambers 

 

Rose Read 

Marie Lowe 

Marie Lowe 

Strategy 

Community and Housing 

Strategy 

 

Tenant’s Panel 

Governance Services 

Governance Services 

11 December 2017 
 

 Update on the Housing and 

Homelessness Strategy 

 Housing Services Performance 

update – Quarter two 

 Action Update Report 

 Work Programme 

Sian Chambers 

 

Lucy Aston 

 

Marie Lowe 

Marie Lowe 

Community and Housing 

Strategy 

Housing Operations 

 

Governance Services 

Governance Services 

9 January 2018 

22 January 2018 
 

 HRA Business Plan 

 Action Update Report 

 

Sian Chambers 

Marie Lowe 

 

Community and Housing 

Strategy 

Governance Services 

6 February 2018 

P
age 22



CABINET HOUSING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18 

MEETING DATES REPORTS FROM OFFICERS REPORT 
AUTHORS 

SERVICE AREAS 
 

TO CABINET/ 
COUNCIL IF 
APPLICABLE 

 Work Programme Marie Lowe Governance Services 

5 March 2018 
 

 Housing Services Performance 

update – Quarter three 

 Action Update Report 

 Work Programme 

Lucy Aston 

Marie Lowe  

Marie Lowe 

Housing Operations 

Governance Services 

Governance Services 

3 April 2018 

16 April 2018  Action Update Report 

 Work Programme 

Marie Lowe 

Marie Lowe 

Governance Services 

Governance Services 

June 2018 

 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 ACTIONS UPDATE
	10 REVIEW OF THE HOUSING ALLOCATIONS POLICY (HAP)
	11 WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18

